

He was 73.

In the old age of his stout-hearted career he had founded the
town, sprawled half on the rising
level and half on the narrow strip
of hard earth and rock at the of hard ca.... river's margin.

ACROSS the unquiet water stood the pposing town of Linn City, founded by Robert Moore. Each towh had known the guiding wisdom of a single hand. On September 2, 1857, half up the slope of the fire-fad hill behind Linn City, in the simple dwelling named by him "Robirs' Nest," Robert Moore did, ex-factor of the Hudson Bay's company in the Oregon country, died one day after.

Four years later came the "great flood." When New Years day, 1862, dawned cold with a clear, pale sun, a light mantling of snow overlay Oregon City. But Linn City had vanished.

Nameuro Moore came to Oregon in the fall of 1840, as a member of the Peoria Party, Pleased by the prospect of owning the green fall lying along the west bank of the Willamette river at the falls, he negoliated for its purchase from Chief Wanaxha, of the Chighi-we-wallah, or Wallamut

Indians.

In this act he differed from the majority of his fellow settlers, who took without payment the land they chose, sometimes finding their lives imperiled for doing so.

MAJOR MOORE was 59 years MAJOR MOORE was 59 years old when he came to Oregon. He was a heavy-set man, with rotund stomach, florid face and bald head. He was somewhat irascible, opinionated and domineering, and stubborn enough for others to find it difficult to get along with

Notwithstanding, he was hon-est and on occasion kindly.

The log cabin which Moore built for himself stood on the east slope of the hill over-looking the falls. Partly be-cause of its situation among the trees and partly after his own first name, he called his home "Robhirs Nest."

home "Robin's Nest."
Moore's donation land claim excended westward from the water
1340 feet, and from one fourth
of a mile below the falls to one
and three fourths miles above the
falls, From the northeast corner
of this property the owner carved
bis townsite, in 1843.

ORIGINALLY there were 25 ORIGINALLY there were 25 blocks. Of that number, he reserved two; a block facing on the river and one directly behind it. These were omitted in the plat of the town, which was never recorded. All blocks were 320 by 220 feet, agith 25-foot alleys running bottle ways. The streets were of 5 feet while and were named for 50 feet while and were named for States, and for local geographical points. The printer townsite occupied between 40 and 50 acres, and qxtended part way up the treeextended part way up the tree-crowded slope where Moore's dwelling stood.

WHEN THE 1861 FLOOD was at its greatest, the daring Riverboat Captain George W. Taylor rode the small steamer St. Claire from Canemah over the Willamette falls. It was agreed that Captain. Taylor, if still alive and his boat dry, should pull the whistle as he entered the lower river. As the triumphant toot-toot echoed over the river, a shout went up from the massed onlookers. Directly above is the Linn City site, Oregon City across river.

A limited immediate sale of lots apparently took place; concerted emigration from the East had begun, and some homeseekers preferred the amenities of settlement commerce to the hardships of land tilling. land tilling.

Major Moore, by an act of the provisional legislature, on Decem-ber 22, 1845, changed the name of his town from Robin's Nest to Linn City in honor of his friend, Dr. Lewis F. Linn of Mis-

souri. The Spectator observed on February 19, 1846, that "On the west side of the river immediately opposite the fails . . . at Lian City . improvements are going ahead . . . Linn City contains one tavern, one chair manufactory, one cabinet shop, one gunsmith shop and one wagon shop."

JAMES MARSHALL Moore, a son of Robert Moore, arrived in Oregon in 1847. He took the claim next above his father's and situ-ated at the mouth of the "Tualaty" river. There in 1849 he built a lumber mill and a grist mill.

umber mill and a girst mill.

The Linn City Works, as
they soon became known,
were built by Major Moore
in 1852 and 1853. A grist mill,
where were constructed below the
where and a breakwater
were constructed below the
falls. The breakwater created
a basin where river boats
could tie in for loading and
unloading at the mills and
warehouse.

warehouse.
Freight had then to be carried around the falls, where at their head a similar basin was constructed with a protecting breaker, with wharves extending to wharves extending to the warehold of the naı, company,

IN THE middle '50s, with his dramed-of city still little more than a place of mills and a trans-fer point for river traffic, Moore's aggressive spirit flagged.

"Old Mr. Moore," Lieut. Wilkes had called him in 1841. Then with Moore's death in 1857, Linn City seemed to lag in importance.

seemed to lag in Importance.
On the night of Tuesday, April 23, 1861, fire—later said to be of incendiary origin—broke out in the lower warehouse and soon spread to the grist mill.
There William Overholtzer, the caretaker, was asleep on an upper cought his way to a window, from which he lowered himself to the ground by a rope tied to his bed-stead. The rope burned off just as he reached firm earth.

ALBEADY Ling City's resistance.

ALREADY Linn City's residents were awake and aware of the destruction that threatened. The conflagration was soon out of hand and spreading from the grist mill to the sawmill.

Two river boats, that had come in only that afternoon, were docked in the upper Linn City basin; the steamer James Clinton, which was then supplying the Yamhill river trade, and the Relief, a smaller vessel.

smaller vessel.

Someone heroically chopped the mooring ropes of the Relief, and it was towed away by row-boats. The James Clinton, however, was larger and less manageable. Frantic efforts to cut it loose were thwarted by flame, which leaped from rail to cabin and swept along the decks, in a few hours it burnet to the water's edge and sank. Earlier that day, the James Clinton, had unloaded into the warefulouse about 22 tons of bacon from up-1ver farmers.

EACH parcel was wrapped in

EACH parcel was wrapped in burlap and it was thought for a while that a spark from the chim-ney of one of the vessels, or from a laborer's pipe or cigar, had fallen in the inflammable mate-rial, had smouldered and finally broken into flame.

But Linn City's industries had been destroyed. The books and papers of the Ore-gon Milling & Transportation company had been consumed.

It was the loss of these, the evidence of much indebtedness

on the part of individuals, that raised the suspicion of incendi-

AT LEAST a few of the town's AT LEAST a few of the town's business leaders refused to be discouraged. Robert Pentland, by the right of his equity in the Works, laid claim, with James K. Kelly, to the property. If the warehouse and freight handling facilities were restored, Linn City could regain its lost trade; and facilities were restored, Linn City could regain its lost trade; and facilities were restored, Linn City could regain its lost trade; and facilities were restored, Linn City could regain its lost trade; and facilities are constructed to the partly burned warehouse.

As before, the building was largely of timbers, with very little stone. However, more modern apparatus was in-stalled to facilitate the transstaticd to facilitate the trans-portation of freight around the falls. There was a hoist of forty feet to the basin above. The entire cost was \$5000. Handling charges for freight around the falls were \$1 a top. \$1 a ton.

The case of the continuous charges of the co

and crowed.

The mills, the warehouse, and all of the stores and houses on the rocky flat of Linn City were deep in the mounting flood. All day stranded people were reduced to the store of the store o

DURING that afternoon a large part of the breakwater protect-ing the Works gave way before the immense pressure of water.

WILLAMETTE RIVER TOWNS HISTORIED

EDITOR'S NOTE: Howard EDITOR'S NOTE: Howard
McKinley Corning recently
finished his book, Willamette Landlugs, a nagrative
of old Willamette river towns,
for the Oregon Historical sofor the oregon Historical sothe control of the control
binfords and Mort
Initiatory research and
writing was done as a WPA
Oregon Writors' Project
enacknowledgement is made to
those individuals who participated.

pated.
PACIFIC PARADE is presenting on this page excerpts of an interesting chapter taken from Mr. Corning's book.

At intervals, great masses of tim-bers forming the crib-work broke

bers forming the crib-work broke up and were swept away. Gradually the flood's force became too great to resist; walls of houses and stores were crushed or were picked up bodily and borne away. With the breakthester was the state of the swept and their weeks age was sucked into the current.

· Finally, with the gray break of Wednesday morning, the extent of the destruction was fully apparent. At Linn City only two dwellings and the warehouse at the Works re-mained standing.

The breakwater, above and below the falls, had been carried away at a loss of \$50,000. In the mill, quantities of wheat and flour had been guiped down by the waters. All of the houses of the mechanics were gone. Only the lower and upper mills remained standing.

OREGON CITY had suffered far less, about a third of the lower town being under water. A half dozen buildings, at the most, were demolished. At the flood's height, water coursed down Main street for half a mile and many buildings were/temporarily abandoned.

The Clackamas bottoms north of the town, as well as the west shore levels below Lnn City, were immatered. The west shore levels below Lnn City, were immatered with the shore levels below the shore levels with the shore levels of 55 feet higher than its lowest 12-foot slage reached in summer; it was 12 feet higher than the flood of 100 feet levels were so decoded.

The falls were so deeply covered as to seem no more than a turbulent rapids. Only the Indians, when questioned, recalled a greater deluge, many, many moons before.

SUNDAY, DECEMBER 14, 1947 Oregon Journal-3